










 Regular  City Council  Meeting  
7:00 PM , MONDAY,  SEPTEMBER 16, 2013  

City Council Chambers  
23600 Liberty Street  

Farmington, MI  48335  

 

DRAFT  

 

REGULAR  MEETING MINUTES  
 

City of Farmington  Page 1 Updated 10/16/2013 12:36 PM  

A Regular  meeting  of the Farmington City Council was held on September 16, 2013 , 
in City Council Chambers , 23600 Liberty Street , Farmington , MI . Notice of the 
meeting was posted in compliance with Public Act 267 -1976.  
 
The meeting was called to order at 7:00 PM by Mayor J.T. Buck . 

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER  
Attendee Name  Title  Status  Arrived  
J.T. Buck  Mayor  Present   
Greg Cowley  Councilmember  Present   
William Galvin  Mayor Pro Tem  Present   
JoAnne McShane  Councilmember  Absent   
Steve Schneemann  Councilmember  Present   

City Administration Present  
Superintendent Eudy  
Director Christiansen  
City Clerk Halberstadt  
City Manager Pastue  
Attorney Saarela (left at 8:40 PM)  
Attorney Schultz (arrived at 8:40 PM)  
Director Schulz  
Treasurer Weber  

2.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

Councilme mber Schneemann led the Pledge of Allegiance.  

3.  PUBLIC COMMENT  

Commissioner Bill Dwyer provided an update on Oakland County activities. He 
discussed his support for Medicaid expansion legislation recently signed by the 
governor. He announced the Oakland C ounty budget is balanced through 2015.  He 
pointed out the County has retained a AAA bond rating.   
 
Dwyer discussed a report recently published on gun violence in Oakland County.  
He reviewed some of the recommendations from that report and how they will be 
implemented.  

4.2

Packet Pg. 6

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
S

ep
 1

6,
 2

01
3 

7:
00

 P
M

  (
A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L
 O

F
 IT

E
M

S
 O

N
 C

O
N

S
E

N
T

 A
G

E
N

D
A

)



Minutes  Farmington City Council  September 16, 2013  

City of Farmington  Page 2 Updated 10/16/2013 12:36 PM  

 
Dwyer spoke about the Farmington Hills Police Benevolent Association and the 
success of its recent 19th annual golf classic.  He discussed the number of families 
that have been helped over the years through this association.   
 
On behalf of local law enforcement, Director Schulz thanked Commissioner Dwyer 
and his fellow Oakland County Commissioners for their support of the Oakland 
County Sheriff's Department.  The support they bring to local law enforcement in 
times of need is crucial in g etting the job done.  
 
Sal Palland, owner of Off the Beaten Path Books, proposed a food truck rally event 
for Farmington on Sunday, October 13, 2013.  She cited a number  of communities 
that have successfully held this event over the recent past.  She state d this event 
would be great for Farmington in bringing hundreds of people to the area.  She 
noted there would be no investment for promotion of the event as the food trucks 
have their own following.  She stated the event has the support of DDA Director 
Kno wles.  She noted Sunday was chosen in order not to compete with the Farmers 
Market.  
 
Discussion followed regarding the Special Event application process and the timing 
of the event.  
 
Cowley asked about proceeds going to a charity.  
 
Ms. Palland responded t hat this is not a money making opportunity therefore there 
would be no proceeds to donate to a charity.  
 
In response to an additional question from Cowley, Ms. Palland stated local 
restaurants would be invited to participate in the event.  
 
Responding to a  further question, Ms. Palland stated all the food trucks will provide 
health certificates.  
 
Discussion followed regarding the kinds of food that would be offered.  Ms. Palland 
stated this event would support the downtown businesses by providing more foot 
traffic and bring more  interest to the area.  
 
Responding to a question from Schneemann, Ms. Palland stated she was thinking 
about 5 -6 trucks for this event.  
 
Discussion followed regarding the interest of local restaurants in participating in this 
event.  
 
Buck advised the City normally gets more lead time to review the logistics of an 
event.  He stated the City is very interested in events that promote the downtown.  
He asked City Administration how Council should address this request.  
 
Discussion followed regarding the need for a more detailed plan and the time 
constraints.  Pastue stated Council would have to make the determination on 
whether or not to allow City Administration to approve the event.  

4.2

Packet Pg. 7

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
S

ep
 1

6,
 2

01
3 

7:
00

 P
M

  (
A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L
 O

F
 IT

E
M

S
 O

N
 C

O
N

S
E

N
T

 A
G

E
N

D
A

)



Minutes  Farmington City Council  September 16, 2013  

City of Farmington  Page 3 Updated 10/16/2013 12:36 PM  

 
Buck advised the City needs to see more of a plan which would make the October 
13th date difficult to achieve.  
 
Cowley advised he would support the event if a charity was heavily involved.  
 
Pastue and Director Knowles will meet with Ms. Palland to work out the details of 
the event.  
 
Jeff Scott, 23218 Prospect,  the Grand River Corridor Visioning Plan will be 
considered for approval by Council later in the agenda.  As a member of the Grand 
River Corridor Improvement Authority, he stated the Plan is something in which the 
community can be very proud.  
 
Mr. Scott e xpressed concern regarding the road construction projects that have 
fallen behind schedule.  He stated after Labor Day weather becomes more unsettled 
which could lead to the quality of construction being compromised.  He noted senior 
citizens are being aff ected by the construction as well. He shared his concern that 
more city services might be needed to do the hand holding and clean up of some of 
the issues with run -off entering the river.  
 
Brian Golden, 33414 Oakland, announced the dedication of an histor ic sign on 
Friday, October 4, at 5pm located in front of Talmer Bank .  He advised the 
Farmington Historical Society participated in a 4 -year project that provided grant 
funds for wayside signs.  The sign includes the history of Grand River Avenue in 
Farmi ngton.  

4.  APPROVAL OF ITEMS ON  CONSENT AGENDA  

RESULT:  APPROVED [UNANIMOUS]  
MOVER:  William Galvin, Mayor Pro Tem  
SECONDER:  Greg Cowley, Councilmember  
AYES:  Buck, Cowley, Galvin, Schneemann  
ABSENT:  McShane  

A .   Minutes of the  City Council -  Special -  Jul 15,  2013 6:00 PM  

B .   Minutes of the  City Council -  Special Study Session -  Aug 19, 2013 6:00 
PM  

C.   Minutes of the  City Council -  Regular -  Aug 19, 2013 7:00 PM  

D .   Minutes of the  City Council -  Special Study Session -  Sep 3, 2013 7:00 PM  

E. Public Safety Monthly Report August 2013  

F. Farmington Monthly Payments Report August 2013  

5.  APPROVAL OF REGULAR AGENDA  

4.2

Packet Pg. 8

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
S

ep
 1

6,
 2

01
3 

7:
00

 P
M

  (
A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L
 O

F
 IT

E
M

S
 O

N
 C

O
N

S
E

N
T

 A
G

E
N

D
A

)



Minutes  Farmington City Council  September 16, 2013  

City of Farmington  Page 4 Updated 10/16/2013 12:36 PM  

RESULT:  APPROVED [UNANIMOUS]  
MOVER:  William Galvin, Mayor Pro Tem  
SECONDER:  Greg Cowley, Councilmember  
AYES:  Buck, Cowley, Galvin, Schneemann  
ABSENT:  McShane  

6.  PRESENTATION/PUBLIC HEARINGS  

A. Consideration to Adopt Bond Authorization Resolution  

Present:  Laura Bassett, Miller, Canfield, Paddock and Stone  
 
Pastue reviewed the proposed resolution and healthcare plan that will be 
submitted to the Departm ent of Treasury.  He reviewed the healthcare cost 
containment measures undertaken by the city.  He noted the issuance of the 
bonds will reduce the city's accrued healthcare liability by over $6.7 million.   
 
At the request of Galvin, Laura Bassett discusse d a statute requirement that 
Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) bond proceeds be placed in a separate 
trust.  She explained the city's existing trust will meet this requirement.  She 
further explained that the resolution establishes a new restricted fun d within the 
trust for the purpose of paying back debt service on the bonds.  
 
Responding to a question from Galvin, Basset stated they have seen increased 
interest in this type of funding, but more for the pension side rather than the 
OPEB side. She stated  Farmington would be the first OPEB issuance.  
 
Buck stated this action and the related study is a cornerstone in trying to 
address a liability for the city that extends into the future.  He complimented 
City Manager Pastue and Treasurer Weber and city staf f and their efforts and 
sacrifices to get the city to this point.  He stated this measure secures the 
benefits into the future and protects the city's financial position as well. He 
praised the city's forward thinking in addressing legacy costs.  
 
Cowley po inted out this same strategy was employed by many cities in 
California, however, it failed because no cost containment measures were put in 
place.  He stated it is up to City Council to continue to control expenses.  He 
expressed support for the issuance o f OPEB bonds believing it is the right thing 
to do.  
 
Galvin thanked city staff for their efforts in putting the OPEB plan together.  He 
spoke about why the city is issuing the bonds; discussed cost containment 
measures required by the state.  He advised t he city still has retiree healthcare 
costs and council must continue to manage those costs.  He noted Oakland 
County successfully issued OPEB bonds about 15 years ago. He stated this is a 
great step forward for Farmington.  
 
 

4.2

Packet Pg. 9

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
S

ep
 1

6,
 2

01
3 

7:
00

 P
M

  (
A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L
 O

F
 IT

E
M

S
 O

N
 C

O
N

S
E

N
T

 A
G

E
N

D
A

)



Minutes  Farmington City Council  September 16, 2013  

City of Farmington  Page 5 Updated 10/16/2013 12:36 PM  

 
Motion to adopt a bond authori zation resolution to issue Other Post 
Employment Benefit (OPEB) bonds for a not - to - exceed amount of 
$8,000,000 .  [SEE ATTACHED RESOLUTION].   CMR 09 -13 -046  
 
Roll Call was taken in following order:  Cowley, Galvin, Schneemann, Buck.  

RESULT:  ADOPTED [UNANIMOU S]  
MOVER:  Greg Cowley, Councilmember  
SECONDER:  William Galvin, Mayor Pro Tem  
AYES:  J.T. Buck, Greg Cowley, William Galvin, Steve Schneemann  
ABSENT:  JoAnne McShane  

B. Consideration to Accept Community Visioning Plan, Kevin 
Christiansen/Economic and Communit y Development Director  

Kevin Christiansen, Economic and Community Development Director, reviewed 
the Farmington Vision Plan summary.  
 
Cowley expressed surprise at the amount of change the citizenry would like to 
see in Farmington.  He was pleased to see pe ople are looking for growth in our 
community.  He is looking forward to helping wherever he can.  
 
Galvin stated he was pleased to be part of the visioning process.  
 
At the request of Galvin, Christiansen spoke about the collaborative effort going 
forward in the implementation of this plan.  
 
Schneemann stated he was pleasantly surprised at the appetite for growth in the 
city.  He noted residents recognize the city needs to continue to redevelop in 
order to thrive.  He pointed out the city is currently invol ved in actions that 
directly address some of the action items in the vision plan.  
 
Schneemann, referring to an earlier comment regarding the slow pace of 
construction, recognized it can be challenging especially in the downtown, but 
he noted it is an excit ing time for Farmington and asked for patience.  He stated 
some of the changes are a result of visioning from years passed.  He noted the 
cost and time involved in renovations, but pointed out the end result is worth it.  
 
Buck stated Christiansen's present ation and the Vision Plan document represent 
thousands and thousands of hours by not only city staff but residents who 
attended the vision sessions. He noted the ideas and energy expressed in those 
sessions give this plan a great chance for success.  
 
Chris tiansen thanked Council, staff and citizens for their effort.  
 
Motion to accept the Community Visioning Plan and instruct City 
Administration to prepare a work plan for implementation of priority 
action items.  [SEE ATTACHED PLAN].  

4.2

Packet Pg. 10

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
S

ep
 1

6,
 2

01
3 

7:
00

 P
M

  (
A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L
 O

F
 IT

E
M

S
 O

N
 C

O
N

S
E

N
T

 A
G

E
N

D
A

)



Minutes  Farmington City Council  September 16, 2013  

City of Farmington  Page 6 Updated 10/16/2013 12:36 PM  

RESULT:  APPROVED [UNANIMO US]  
MOVER:  Greg Cowley, Councilmember  
SECONDER:  William Galvin, Mayor Pro Tem  
AYES:  J.T. Buck, Greg Cowley, William Galvin, Steve Schneemann  
ABSENT:  JoAnne McShane  

C. Consideration to Accept Grand River Corridor Improvement Authority's 
Visioning Plan, Kevi n Christiansen/Economic and Community 
Development Director  

Christiansen reviewed the Grand River Corridor Improvement Authority Visioning 
Plan.  
 
Christiansen thanked Mr. Scott for being instrumental in the development of the 
plan.  He also thanked Mayor Bu ck for his participation as well.  
 
Christian indicated both plan documents are on the city's website.  
 
Schneemann commented the importance of Grand River cannot be overstated. 
He stated it is a corridor that connects one side of the state to the other. He 
stated as a governing body it is important for Council and the community to 
embrace this plan and facilitate its implementation.  
 
Cowley concurred with Schneemann's comments. He stated Grand River is the 
city's best economic development opportunity and str ategic asset. He is glad to 
see Christiansen undertaking both plans and moving them forward.  
 
Discussion followed regarding the implementation strategy of each city.  
Christiansen pointed out each city has its own Master Plan and set of ordinances, 
however , the plan will be the overall guide for both.  
 
Responding to a question from Galvin, Christiansen stated both communities 
have separate master plans however, this plan takes planning to another level.  
He advised a uniform look is not the intent of the pl an.  He pointed out each city 
has a unique implementation plan with different strategies, however, the plan 
will be the overall guide. He stated the next step in the process is to create a 
development plan.  
 
Pastue stated the intent is to have common eleme nts, but density will dictate 
different approaches.  
 
Christiansen noted the Grand River Corridor Vision Plan and its implementation 
is intended to be its own distinctive corridor.  
 
Buck spoke about the interesting drive on Grand River from Jefferson Avenue  to 
downtown Farmington.  He stated when you arrive in Farmington it feels like a 
safe oasis.  He stated this vision plan extends the feeling of an oasis going down 

4.2

Packet Pg. 11

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
S

ep
 1

6,
 2

01
3 

7:
00

 P
M

  (
A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L
 O

F
 IT

E
M

S
 O

N
 C

O
N

S
E

N
T

 A
G

E
N

D
A

)



Minutes  Farmington City Council  September 16, 2013  

City of Farmington  Page 7 Updated 10/16/2013 12:36 PM  

Grand River to the eastern borders of Farmington and Farmington Hills.  He 
commented this i s a great opportunity for the cities to work together.  
 
Motion to accept the Grand River Corridor Improvement Authority's 
Visioning Plan and instruct City Administration to work with the 
Farmington Corridor Improvement Authority, Farmington Hills Corridor 
Improvement Authority, and Planning Commission to implement 
recommendations contained in the plan.  [SEE ATTACHED PLAN].  

RESULT:  APPROVED [UNANIMOUS]  
MOVER:  William Galvin, Mayor Pro Tem  
SECONDER:  Greg Cowley, Councilmember  
AYES:  J.T. Buck, Greg Cowley, Wil liam Galvin, Steve Schneemann  
ABSENT:  JoAnne McShane  

7.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

Council took a 5 minute break at 8:40 p.m. and resumed the meeting at 8:48 p.m.  

A. Consideration of Resolution to Establish Grand River Halsted Shopping 
Plaza Commercial Rehabilita tion District  

Pastue reviewed a resolution to establish the Grand River Halsted Shopping 
Plaza Commercial Rehabilitation District.  
 
Pastue read a letter from Oakland County expressing support for the 
Rehabilitation District.  
 
Galvin commented he has sorely  missed what was once a filled and vibrant 
center.  He looks forward to the opportunities the Rehabilitation District will 
bring to that center.  
 
Motion to adopt a resolution to establish the Grand River Halsted 
Shopping Plaza Commercial Rehabilitation Dis trict.  [SEE ATTACHED 
RESOLUTION].  CMR 09 -13 -047  
 
Roll call was taken in the following order:  Galvin, Schneemann, Buck, Cowley.  

RESULT:  APPROVED [UNANIMOUS]  
MOVER:  William Galvin, Mayor Pro Tem  
SECONDER:  Steve Schneemann, Councilmember  
AYES:  J.T. Buck, Gr eg Cowley, William Galvin, Steve Schneemann  
ABSENT:  JoAnne McShane  

B. Consideration of Resolution to Approve Internal Financing for Civic 
Theater Digital Equipment  

Pastue reviewed resolution proposing internal financing of the digital equipment 
at the Civi c Theater.  

4.2

Packet Pg. 12

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
S

ep
 1

6,
 2

01
3 

7:
00

 P
M

  (
A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L
 O

F
 IT

E
M

S
 O

N
 C

O
N

S
E

N
T

 A
G

E
N

D
A

)



Minutes  Farmington City Council  September 16, 2013  

City of Farmington  Page 8 Updated 10/16/2013 12:36 PM  

 
Cowley reiterated his support for a ticket increase to $5.  
 
Motion to adopt a resolution approving internal financing terms for 
purchase and installation of Civic Theater digital equipment. [SEE 
ATTACHED RESOLUTION]. CMR 09 -13 -048  
 
Roll Call wa s taken in the following order:  Schneemann, Buck, Cowley, Galvin.  

RESULT:  ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS]  
MOVER:  William Galvin, Mayor Pro Tem  
SECONDER:  Steve Schneemann, Councilmember  
AYES:  J.T. Buck, Greg Cowley, William Galvin, Steve Schneemann  
ABSENT:  JoAnne McSh ane  

8.  NEW BUSINESS  

A. Consideration to Schedule Public Hearing Regarding the 2014 CBDG 
Grant Application  

City Administration requested Council approval to hold a public hearing on 
October 21, 2013 regarding the proposed PY2014 Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG).  
 
Motion  to schedule a public hearing on October 21, 2013 at 7:00 p.m. to 
receive public comment on the proposed PY2014 Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG).  

RESULT:  APPROVED [UNANIMOUS]  
MOVER:  Greg Cowley, Councilmember  
SECONDER:  William  Galvin, Mayor Pro Tem  
AYES:  J.T. Buck, Greg Cowley, William Galvin, Steve Schneemann  
ABSENT:  JoAnne McShane  

B. Consideration to Schedule Public Hearing to Vacate All Public Right - Of -
Way in Farmington Woods Subdivision  

City Administration requested Council  adopt a resolution to schedule a public 
hearing regarding the vacation of all public right -of -way in the Farmington 
Woods Subdivision.  Pastue requested Council amend the resolution to include 
Easthaven Drive as part of the vacation.  
 
Motion to adopt a re solution to schedule a public hearing for Monday, 
October 21, 2013 at 7:00 p.m. in the City Council Chambers to consider 
vacating all public right - of - way in the Farmington Woods Subdivision.  
[SEE ATTACHED RESOLUTION].  CMR 09 -13 -049  

4.2

Packet Pg. 13

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
S

ep
 1

6,
 2

01
3 

7:
00

 P
M

  (
A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L
 O

F
 IT

E
M

S
 O

N
 C

O
N

S
E

N
T

 A
G

E
N

D
A

)



Minutes  Farmington City Council  September 16, 2013  

City of Farmington  Page 9 Updated 10/16/2013 12:36 PM  

RESULT:  APPROVED [UNAN IMOUS]  
MOVER:  Greg Cowley, Councilmember  
SECONDER:  William Galvin, Mayor Pro Tem  
AYES:  J.T. Buck, Greg Cowley, William Galvin, Steve Schneemann  
ABSENT:  JoAnne McShane  

C. Consideration to Approve SMART Agreement for Transfer of Municipal 
and Community Credi ts  

City Administration requested Council approval of an agreement with SMART for 
Municipal and Community Credits for FY 2014.  
 
Galvin spoke about the expanded service SMART is now providing.  He 
expressed appreciation to Mayor Buck for facilitating this im proved service.  
 
Roll Call taken in the following order:  Buck, Cowley, Galvin, Schneemann.  
 
Motion to authorize the City Manager to sign an agreement with the 
Suburban Mobility Authority for Regional Transportation (SMART) for 
Municipal Credits and Commu nity Credits on behalf of the City for Fiscal 
Year 2014 . [SEE ATTACHED AGREEMENT].  

RESULT:  APPROVED [UNANIMOUS]  
MOVER:  Greg Cowley, Councilmember  
SECONDER:  William Galvin, Mayor Pro Tem  
AYES:  J.T. Buck, Greg Cowley, William Galvin, Steve Schneemann  
ABSENT:  JoAnne McShane  

D. Consideration to Authorize the Purchase of One Police Administration 
Vehicle  

City Administration requested Council approval of a 2014 Ford Police Interceptor 
Utility Vehicle as part of the on -going vehicle replacement program.  
 
Motion to  approve the purchase of one police administration vehicle 
from Gorno Ford, Woodhaven MI, in the amount of $25,905.00.  
 
Roll Call was taken in the following order:  Cowley, Galvin, Schneemann, Buck.  

RESULT:  APPROVED [UNANIMOUS]  
MOVER:  William Galvin, Mayor  Pro Tem  
SECONDER:  Steve Schneemann, Councilmember  
AYES:  J.T. Buck, Greg Cowley, William Galvin, Steve Schneemann  
ABSENT:  JoAnne McShane  

E. Consideration to Approve Construction Estimate #4 for the 2013 
Streetscape & Utilities Improvements and Change Order  #2  

4.2

Packet Pg. 14

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
S

ep
 1

6,
 2

01
3 

7:
00

 P
M

  (
A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L
 O

F
 IT

E
M

S
 O

N
 C

O
N

S
E

N
T

 A
G

E
N

D
A

)



Minutes  Farmington City Council  September 16, 2013  

City of Farmington  Page 10 Updated 10/16/2013 12:36 PM  

City Administration requested approval of construction estimate No. 4 and 
change order No. 2 For the Grove Street and Warner/Oakland Street projects.  
 
Responding to a question from Galvin, City Attorney Schultz stated there are a 
limited number of reas ons why payment can be delayed and this project does 
not meet any one of them.  
 
Galvin expressed his desire to vote no on this payment request, but will follow 
legal counsel's recommendation on this matter.  
 
Motion to approve construction estimate #4 and i ssue payment to 
Warren Contractors in the amount of $161,894.95 and change order #2 
increasing the contract amount by $507.81 for work completed on the 
Grove Street and Warner/Oakland projects.  
 
Roll Call was taken in the following order:  Galvin, Schneema nn, Buck, Cowley.  

RESULT:  APPROVED [3 TO 1]  
MOVER:  Steve Schneemann, Councilmember  
SECONDER:  William Galvin, Mayor Pro Tem  
AYES:  J.T. Buck, William Galvin, Steve Schneemann  
NAYS:  Greg Cowley  
ABSENT:  JoAnne McShane  

F. Consideration to Introduce Ordinance #C - 770 - 2013 Regulating Precious 
Metal and Gem Dealers  

Motion to introduce Ordinance C - 770 - 2013 to amend Chapter 8, 
Registration and Licensing, of the City Code to add Article III to 
regulate precious metal and gem dealers.  [SEE ATTACHED ORDINANCE]  

RESULT:  AD OPTED [UNANIMOUS]  
MOVER:  Greg Cowley, Councilmember  
SECONDER:  William Galvin, Mayor Pro Tem  
AYES:  J.T. Buck, Greg Cowley, William Galvin, Steve Schneemann  
ABSENT:  JoAnne McShane  

G. Consideration to Introduce Ordinance #C - 771 - 2013 Regulating 
Secondhand Deal ers and Junk Dealers  

Motion to introduce Ordinance C - 771 - 2013 to amend Chapter 8, 
Registration and Licensing, of the City Code to add Article IV to regulate 
secondhand dealers and junk dealers.  [SEE ATTACHED ORDINANCE]  

4.2

Packet Pg. 15

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
S

ep
 1

6,
 2

01
3 

7:
00

 P
M

  (
A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L
 O

F
 IT

E
M

S
 O

N
 C

O
N

S
E

N
T

 A
G

E
N

D
A

)



Minutes  Farmington City Council  September 16, 2013  

City of Farmington  Page 11 Updated 10/16/2013 12:36 PM  

RESULT:  ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS]  
MOVER:  William Galvin, Mayor Pro Tem  
SECONDER:  Steve Schneemann, Councilmember  
AYES:  J.T. Buck, Greg Cowley, William Galvin, Steve Schneemann  
ABSENT:  JoAnne McShane  

H. Consideration to Introduce Ordinance #C - 772 - 2013 Regulating 
Pawnbrokers  

Motion to introduce Ordin ance C - 772 - 2013 to amend Chapter 8, 
Registration and Licensing, of the City Code to add Article V to regulate 
Pawnbrokers.  [SEE ATTACHED ORDINANCE]  

RESULT:  ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS]  
MOVER:  Greg Cowley, Councilmember  
SECONDER:  William Galvin, Mayor Pro Tem  
AYES:  J.T. Buck, Greg Cowley, William Galvin, Steve Schneemann  
ABSENT:  JoAnne McShane  

I . Consideration to Schedule Special Meeting for September 30, 2013  

City Administration requested Council schedule a special meeting on September 
30, 2013 to review proposed or dinances and discuss emergency management 
training.  
 
Motion to schedule a special meeting for Monday, September 30, 2013 
at 7:00 p.m.  

RESULT:  APPROVED [UNANIMOUS]  
MOVER:  Greg Cowley, Councilmember  
SECONDER:  William Galvin, Mayor Pro Tem  
AYES:  J.T. Buck, Gr eg Cowley, William Galvin, Steve Schneemann  
ABSENT:  JoAnne McShane  

J. Board and Committee Appointments  

Motion to reappoint Kim Thompson Everett and John Mayer to the 
Farmington Beautification Committee for 3 - year terms ending June 30, 
2016.  

4.2

Packet Pg. 16

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
S

ep
 1

6,
 2

01
3 

7:
00

 P
M

  (
A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L
 O

F
 IT

E
M

S
 O

N
 C

O
N

S
E

N
T

 A
G

E
N

D
A

)



Minutes  Farmington City Council  September 16, 2013  

City of Farmington  Page 12 Updated 10/16/2013 12:36 PM  

RESULT:  APPROVE D [UNANIMOUS]  
MOVER:  William Galvin, Mayor Pro Tem  
SECONDER:  Greg Cowley, Councilmember  
AYES:  J.T. Buck, Greg Cowley, William Galvin, Steve Schneemann  
ABSENT:  JoAnne McShane  

9.  DEPARTMENT HEAD COMM ENTS  

Halberstadt expressed appreciation to the Heeney -Sundq uist Funeral Home for their 
recent sponsorship of a Jazz Concert at the Warner Mansion.  She announced the 
upcoming Ghostwalk at the Mansion scheduled for Saturday, October 19th, 7 -
9:30pm.  
 
Halberstadt announced the League of Women Voters is sponsoring a c andidate 
forum on Wednesday, September 25th at 7pm in Council Chambers.  She further 
announced October 7th is the last day to register to vote for the November election.  
 
Eudy advised the parking lot adjacent to the Library has been resurfaced.  
 
Christians en discussed the status of the Drakeshire Plaza renovations; indicated the 
Farmington Tennis Club was purchased by Total Sports; noted the site plan for the 
old courthouse will require a PUD process; indicated a Request for Proposal for the 
second phase of  The Orchards will be issued; and he continues to work with the 
schools on the sale Maxfield Training Center and Flanders School properties.  
 
Pastue spoke about the status of the Grove Street and Warner/Oakland Street 
projects.  He noted Treasurer Weber di d a wonderful job in working the numbers on 
Retiree Healthcare to drive that accrued liability down.  He pointed out the number 
of projects Christiansen has undertaken and how fortunate the city is to have him 
on board.  He noted the recent domestic situat ion on Hawthorne and the gas main 
rupture on Warner that were handled in an efficient and professional manner by 
Director Schultz and his staff.  He stated Eudy does a wonderful job working 
through solutions with the construction projects and Sue with the Mansion.  
 
Pastue recognized the city's collaborative effort with Farmington Hills on the Grand 
River Corridor Improvement Authority.  

10.  COUNCIL COMMENT  

Galvin commented on the importance of the OPEB bonds to the city's financial 
future.  He stated both th e taxpayers and retirees will benefit as a result of this 
funding mechanism for Retiree Healthcare.  He pointed out that with this action the 
city is saving Farmington taxpayers $6.7 million.  
 
Cowley concurred with Galvin's comments, also noting the OPEB bonds were a 
creative solution to a long term liability brought forth by city staff.  He expressed 
appreciation to the Public Safety Department and Farmington Hills Fire Department 
for their response to a recent fire at his restaurant.  He stated there was  limited 
damage due to their efforts.  He hoped to re -open on Tuesday, September 24th.   

4.2

Packet Pg. 17

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
S

ep
 1

6,
 2

01
3 

7:
00

 P
M

  (
A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L
 O

F
 IT

E
M

S
 O

N
 C

O
N

S
E

N
T

 A
G

E
N

D
A

)



Minutes  Farmington City Council  September 16, 2013  

City of Farmington  Page 13 Updated 10/16/2013 12:36 PM  

 
Cowley expressed concern that people were being discouraged from visiting his 
restaurant due to his opposition to the School Bonds on the August ballot.  He 
discussed  a number of ways in which he has been a supporter of public schools.  He 
explained his opposition to the bonds and raising taxes.  
 
Buck commented the two vision programs presented and approved that evening will 
make the city stronger and promote growth.  He stated the OPEB bonds were a 
very significant action for the city.  He expressed his gratitude to Treasurer Weber 
for his effort in working on financial solutions for the city.   
 
Buck felt compelled to comment on Cowley's remarks concerning a "boycott"  of his 
business due to his opposition to the school bond issue. He stated we live in a 
democracy that allows us to have our own opinions on various issues around us.  
He stated the importance of having councilmembers who have differences of 
opinions becau se that is what brings the best solutions to bear.  He stated Cowley 
is telling his truth on the bond issue and we need be willing to discuss and respect 
each others opinions.  

11.  ADJOURNMENT  

 Motion to adjourn the meeting.  

RESULT:  APPROVED [UNANIMOUS]  
MO VER:  William Galvin, Mayor Pro Tem  
SECONDER:  Greg Cowley, Councilmember  
AYES:  J.T. Buck, Greg Cowley, William Galvin, Steve Schneemann  
ABSENT:  JoAnne McShane  

The meeting adjourned at 9:36 p.m.  

  
Mayor J.T. Buck   

  
Susan K. Halberstadt, City Clerk    
 
 
Appro val Date: ______________________  

4.2

Packet Pg. 18

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
S

ep
 1

6,
 2

01
3 

7:
00

 P
M

  (
A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L
 O

F
 IT

E
M

S
 O

N
 C

O
N

S
E

N
T

 A
G

E
N

D
A

)













 Special Study Session  City Council  Meeting  
7:00 PM , MONDAY,  OCTOBER 7, 2013  

Conference Room A  
Farmington City Hall  

23600 Liberty St  
Farmington, MI  48335  

 

DRAFT  

 

SPECIAL STUDY SESS ION  MEETING MINUTES  
 

City of Farmington  Page 1 Updated 10/17/2013 3:00 PM  

A Special Study Session  meeting  of the Farmington City Council was held on 
October 7, 2013 , in Conference Room A , Farmington City Hall , Farmington , MI . 
Notice of the meeting was posted in compliance with Public Act 267 -1976.  
 
The meeting was called to ord er at 7:00 PM by Mayor J.T. Buck . 

 

1.  ROLL CALL  
Attendee Name  Title  Status  Arrived  
J.T. Buck  Mayor  Present   
Greg Cowley  Councilmember  Present   
William Galvin  Mayor Pro Tem  Present   
JoAnne McShane  Councilmember  Present   
Steve Schneemann  Councilmember  Present   

City Administration Present  
City Clerk Halberstadt  
City Manager Pastue  

2.  APPROVAL OF  AGENDA  

RESULT:  APPROVED [UNANIMOUS]  
MOVER:  JoAnne McShane, Councilmember  
SECONDER:  Greg Cowley, Councilmember  
AYES:  Buck, Cowley, Galvin, McShane, Schneemann  

3.  PUBLIC COMMENT  

Sal Palland, owner of Off the Beaten Path Books and resident of Farmington, stated 
she had appeared at the last Council meeting to ask about a food truck rally.  She 
indicated since that time she met with City Manager Pastue and DDA Directo r 
Knowles to work out the details of the event. She asked regarding approval of the 
event.  
 
Pastue advised an event permit had been obtained and that the event had been 
approved administratively.  
 

4.4

Packet Pg. 24

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
O

ct
 7

, 2
01

3 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
P

P
R

O
V

A
L

 O
F

 IT
E

M
S

 O
N

 C
O

N
S

E
N

T
 A

G
E

N
D

A
)





Minutes  Farmington City Council  October 7, 2013  

City of Farmingto n Page 3 Updated 10/17/2013 3:00 PM  

levels and the need to maintain classroom programs has made it necessary to 
forestall capital improvement funding.  

 
McShane asked about annual contributions to the capital improvement fund. 
Manier responded approximately two million dollars is put in for ongoing 
maintenance as well as capital improvement projects. He stated the figure 
varies depending on the immediate needs of the District.  

 
McShane asked if t he funds provided in Bond Proposal One is in addition to the 
two million annual contribution to the capital fund. Manier responded in the 
affirmative.  

 
Manier stated Proposal Two addresses the remodeling of High School 
Auditoriums; seating and sound system s, restroom improvements, outdoor 
athletic surfaces; and future replacement technology.  
 
Schneemann inquired regarding access to line item breakdown on the Proposals.  

 
Manier responded the most detailed analysis is available on website.  

 
Buck asked if the  District was at a point where students could bring their own 
devices into the schools and tap into the technology. Manier responded it is one 
of the eight goals of the District Technology Plan.  

 
Manier stated that the proposals are set for three series o f bonds; construction 
lasting between six and nine years; and the bond proceeds will enable the 
District to keep education dollars in the classroom in an effort to maintain 
current programming. He pointed out bond dollars can never be used for 
salaries of anyone within the District or routine maintenance costs.  

 
Galvin asked regarding ongoing financial reporting through the terms of the 
bonds. Manier responded the State of Michigan requires an annual audit which is 
reported to the public.  There is a timeli ne of three years where 85 percent of 
bond money must be spent.  

 
Cowley asked about the tradeoff of using capital dollars for education and the 
benefit to the school system.  

 
Manier responded the District is able to maintain adequate programming in the 
schools offering a number of electives. He advised each year a list of capital 
projects is presented to the School Board.  The benefits are to the choices the 
students have for electives.  

 
Cowley inquired if the maintenance of the schools has made our Distric t 
competitive with all the other school systems.  Manier responded in the 
affirmative.  

 
Cowley questioned the declining enrollment and the need for all of the facilities 
in the next twenty years. Manier responded that predictions of decreasing 
enrollment n umbers are usually only accurate for the next five years. He stated 

4.4

Packet Pg. 26

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
O

ct
 7

, 2
01

3 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
P

P
R

O
V

A
L

 O
F

 IT
E

M
S

 O
N

 C
O

N
S

E
N

T
 A

G
E

N
D

A
)





Minutes  Farmington City Council  October 7, 2013  

City of Farmingto n Page 5 Updated 10/17/2013 3:00 PM  

to expedite sale of the properties.  
 

Zurvalec advised a marketing agent has been hired for those properties.  
 

Buck note the city has been working hard on addressing retiree healthcare 
liability.  He asked regarding pension and retiree healthcare funding for  the 
schools.  

 
Reynolds replied the District has no control over the retirement system since it 
is state controlled and operated.  She stated currently over 29% of every dollar 
goes to the state for pension/retiree healthcare benefits, whereas in 2002, it 
was 12%. She noted employees now contribute 20 -30% of health, dental, and 
vision costs.  

 
Buck asked if the benefit plans were completely funded. Reynolds responded no, 
the state is billions behind in funding those plans.  Buck inquired if the District 
has been impacted by the economic challenges of the Detroit Public Schools. 
Reynolds responded not currently.   
 
Buck then asked if they would continue to allocate $2 million dollars to capital 
fund or would those dollars be applied elsewhere. Reynolds stated they had not 
made that determination as yet.  She spoke about the need to maintain 
technology and to set aside dollars in the general operating budget for same.  

 
Buck commented it is an excellent time to go out for a bond, pointed out rates 
are historicall y low.  He is very proud of Farmington schools and grateful to the 
Board of Education and the staff for their presentation.  

5.  HISTORIC DISTRICT ST UDY COMMITTEE  

A. Presentation -  Historic District Study Committee  

Present:  Marilyn Weimer and Jenna Stacey,  Historical Commission Members  
 

Pastue indicated the Historical Commission has requested the establishment of 
an Historic District Committee.  He then turned the item over to Marilyn Weimer 
for presentation.  

 
Weimer stated the first step in establishing th is Committee is for City Council to 
agree to appoint members to the Committee.   
 
Pastue pointed out changes had taken place since the last time Council 
addressed this item. He stated State Historic Tax Credits are no longer available, 
a driving force for establishing a Historic District. He advised another primary 
reason is to maintain the character and quality of homes within the District 
thereby increasing property values.  He stated in earlier discussions there was 
concern over the Historic District ord inance itself, but he reiterated that it is City 
Council who establishes the content of the ordinance.  

 
Weimer stated that history is a large part of Farmington and the activities of the 

4.4

Packet Pg. 28

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
O

ct
 7

, 2
01

3 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
P

P
R

O
V

A
L

 O
F

 IT
E

M
S

 O
N

 C
O

N
S

E
N

T
 A

G
E

N
D

A
)



Minutes  Farmington City Council  October 7, 2013  

City of Farmingto n Page 6 Updated 10/17/2013 3:00 PM  

city and it seems like a good fit to establish this committee.  She n amed the 
surrounding communities that have such committees and districts.  

 
Schneemann inquired if the Historic District boundaries would remain the same. 
Weimer responded in the affirmative.  He questioned the standards utilized in 
the State Historic Prese rvation Office (SHPO) and whether they were the same 
as Federal ones. Weimer responded in the affirmative.  

 
Weimer said the purpose of a Historic District ordinance is to preserve the 
historic nature and character of homes.  She stated the purpose of the s tudy 
committee is to evaluate the homes to decide if they are appropriate for this 
ordinance and the correct framework to begin to address these questions.  

 
Schneemann commented that he is very skeptical about the SHPO, noting he 
currently lives in the His toric District and has made a significant investment in 
his home.  In his experience as an architect he has serious doubts that SHPO 
can look at our community objectively. He pointed out SHPO is currently 
opposed to some upgrades proposed for Farmington Ro ad that would match 
what was done along Grand River.  He is doubtful that SHPO can look at 
Farmington and apply Federal standards objectively.  

 
McShane inquired if SHPO always applied to communities in which there is a 
Historic District Ordinance adopted f or redevelopment of a home. Jenna 
responded in the negative, that SHPO has no input whatsoever in the wording of 
the ordinance.  She pointed out there is a model ordinance available on the 
SHPO website, but there is no requirement in any way to follow it.   

 
Buck asked regarding requirements for State approval. Pastue responded the 
final report must be approved, but after that the city is on its own to set up its 
own ordinance.  Buck pointed out an element of the ordinance is to have binding 
approval by the  Historic District Committee on proposed changes to the facade 
of historic homes. Pastue agreed and pointed out SHPO is minimized on the back 
end.  

 
McShane inquired if they had talked to other communities regarding their 
experience in enacting a Historic District Ordinance. Weimer and Stacey 
responded in the negative, but supported the idea.  McShane cited the benefits 
of having such an ordinance including retaining the character of the homes, 
increased property values, and bringing a sense of pride and hi story to the 
community.  

 
McShane stated that the DDA is based on historic preservation and pointed out 
many of the surrounding communities have the ordinance in place so it must be 
working.  She noted maintaining and preserving our historic structures is o f the 
utmost importance in our community.  She believes this is a win/win ordinance 
and the standards created as a result are worth the rewards. She expressed 
support for the Historic District Study Committee and commended the Historical 
Commission for tac kling it again.  

 

4.4

Packet Pg. 29

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
O

ct
 7

, 2
01

3 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
P

P
R

O
V

A
L

 O
F

 IT
E

M
S

 O
N

 C
O

N
S

E
N

T
 A

G
E

N
D

A
)



Minutes  Farmington City Council  October 7, 2013  

City of Farmingto n Page 7 Updated 10/17/2013 3:00 PM  

Cowley noted most people who own historic homes were not in favor of the 
ordinance last time. He inquired what they were going to do to change their 
opinions.  

 
Weimer responded there seems to be more excitement and energy surrounding 
the H istoric District.  She noted education has begun with articles appearing in 
the Observer, the utilization of social media with preservation briefs, etc.  

 
Cowley indicated he will vote with the majority of homeowners in the Historic 
District and encouraged their involvement in this process.  

 
Schneemann asked why the findings in a 2005 study would not still be valid. 
Weimer responded that useful parts of that study would be included in the 
report.  

 
Buck pointed out this process requires a great deal of time a nd effort. He asked 
Councilmembers to provide a clear signal that the endeavor will be worthwhile. 
He expressed support for the committee and believes it would boost economic 
development, preservation of properties and would be an important tool in the 
her itage of the city.  He thanked Weimer and Stacey for their presentation.  

 
Pastue indicated this item will be brought back to Council at the October 21 st  
meeting. He provided a list of interested and potential members.  

6.  CONSIDERATION TO INT RODUCE ORDINANC E #C - 773 - 2013  

A. Consideration to Introduce Ordinance #C - 773 - 2013 Amending Chapter 
31 of the City Code Dealing with Local Super Drunk Prosecutions  

Pastue gave background on the proposed ordinance. He indicated it would be 
placed on the October 21 st  agenda for adoption.  

 Motion to introduce Ordinance C - 773 - 2013 amending Chapter 31 of the 
City Code dealing with Local super Drunk Prosecutions  

RESULT:  APPROVED [UNANIMOUS]  
MOVER:  William Galvin, Mayor Pro Tem  
SECONDER:  JoAnne McShane, Councilmember  
AYES:  Buck, Cowley, Galvin, McShane, Schneemann  

McShane expressed strong support for lobbying the legislature to provide 
treatment for these individuals.  

 
Cowley expressed the need for more cabs in the city.  

7.  OAKLAND COUNTY ANIMA L CONTROL SERVICES  

1 . Discussion -  Oa kland County Animal Control Services  

4.4

Packet Pg. 30

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
O

ct
 7

, 2
01

3 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
P

P
R

O
V

A
L

 O
F

 IT
E

M
S

 O
N

 C
O

N
S

E
N

T
 A

G
E

N
D

A
)





Minutes  Farmington City Council  October 7, 2013  

City of Farmingto n Page 9 Updated 10/17/2013 3:00 PM  

Meeting adjourned at 9:15 p.m  

  
Mayor J.T. Buck   

  
Susan K. Halberstadt, City Clerk    
 
 
Approval Date: ______________________  

4.4

Packet Pg. 32

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
O

ct
 7

, 2
01

3 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
P

P
R

O
V

A
L

 O
F

 IT
E

M
S

 O
N

 C
O

N
S

E
N

T
 A

G
E

N
D

A
)





4.
5.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
4

Attachment: Farmington Monthly Payments report September  (1382 : Farmington Monthly Payments Report)



4.
5.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
5

Attachment: Farmington Monthly Payments report September  (1382 : Farmington Monthly Payments Report)





4.
6.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
7

Attachment: Farmington Financial Report  (1383 : Farmington Financial Report)



4.
6.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
8

Attachment: Farmington Financial Report  (1383 : Farmington Financial Report)



4.
6.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
9

Attachment: Farmington Financial Report  (1383 : Farmington Financial Report)



4.
6.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
0

Attachment: Farmington Financial Report  (1383 : Farmington Financial Report)



4.
6.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
1

Attachment: Farmington Financial Report  (1383 : Farmington Financial Report)



4.
6.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
2

Attachment: Farmington Financial Report  (1383 : Farmington Financial Report)





4.
7.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
4

Attachment: Farmington Investment Report  (1384 : Farmington Investment Report)



4.
7.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
5

Attachment: Farmington Investment Report  (1384 : Farmington Investment Report)





4.
8.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
7

Attachment: 47th District Court Financials  (1385 : 47Th District Court Financial Report)



4.
8.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
8

Attachment: 47th District Court Financials  (1385 : 47Th District Court Financial Report)



4.
8.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
9

Attachment: 47th District Court Financials  (1385 : 47Th District Court Financial Report)



4.
8.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
0

Attachment: 47th District Court Financials  (1385 : 47Th District Court Financial Report)





4.
9.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
2

Attachment: Farmington Public Safety Report September  (1386 : Farmington Public Safety Monthly



4.
9.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
3

Attachment: Farmington Public Safety Report September  (1386 : Farmington Public Safety Monthly



4.
9.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
4

Attachment: Farmington Public Safety Report September  (1386 : Farmington Public Safety Monthly



4.
9.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
5

Attachment: Farmington Public Safety Report September  (1386 : Farmington Public Safety Monthly



4.
9.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
6

Attachment: Farmington Public Safety Report September  (1386 : Farmington Public Safety Monthly



4.
9.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
7

Attachment: Farmington Public Safety Report September  (1386 : Farmington Public Safety Monthly




































































































































































































































































